

Business, Tourism and Informatics Symposium 2021



Promoting a scholarly culture through research and exchange of ideas, experiences and insights for personal growth and professional development



Table of Contents

Message from the Symposium Coordinator	1
Collaborative and inclusive leadership at the local level: A woman's role in PNG's rural tourism	2
Exploring the challenges of small-scale women tourism entrepreneurs in the urban Madang Distri Papua New Guinea	
2018 APEC Summit and national pride: An emerging finding using in-depth interviews	4
Leadership-the boss and the leader: A Papua New Guinea perspective	5
Economic tripartite partnership: Smallholder empowerment in Papua New Guinea	6
Human Development Index: PNG progress optimization model	7
Predicting the spread of COVID-19 in PNG using SIR model incorporating quarantine and testing	8
Using big data to improve health service delivery in Papua New Guinea	9
Factors influencing the adoption of wearable devices in healthcare in developing countries	10
Papua New Guinea tourism crisis management insights: Lessons from COVID-19	11
Reviving tourism in the new normal through staycation: Through the eyes of an observer	12
Adventure travel and its impacts on teaching and learning in the Department of Tourism & Hospitality Management	13
Challenges in teaching a large class and its benefits in the Department of Business Studies	14
Online unit delivery of flexible learning programs in the Faculty of Business and Informatics	15

Message from the Symposium Coordinator

On behalf of the Faculty of Business and Informatics, Divine Word University, I welcome you all to our 3rd Business, Tourism and Informatics Symposium 2021. The theme of this year's symposium is 'promoting a scholarly culture through research and exchange of ideas, experiences and insights for personal growth and professional development'. The symposium provides an avenue to promote a scholarly culture, which can positively impact our teaching, research and other professional activities.

The Symposium allows academics and non-academics to present the outcomes of their research activities, to share knowledge with others, both within and outside the University. The Symposium provides an opportunity to build and maintain a research culture and for staff to work together in the spirit of teamwork and collegiality in hosting such an event. It enables those involved to discover, develop and realize their gifts and potential, and utilize their knowledge, skills and experiences to contribute to the body of knowledge in their respective fields.

The Symposium's book of abstracts can be accessed via https://www.dwu.ac.pg/en/index.php/faculty-pages/277-fp-fbi/fbi-dept/fp-fbi-mcs/788-research-fbi. During the symposium, we will launch Volume 4 of the Electronic Journal of Informatics, which can be accessed via https://www.dwu.ac.pg/en/index.php/faculty-pages/277-fp-fbi/fbi-dept/fp-fbi-mcs/709-fbi-e-journal. Hosting this Symposium and launching Volume 4 of the Journal are great achievements for the Faculty and University for creating and maintaining research and scholarly culture. They uplift standards and motivations for future research and knowledge exchange.

Once again, welcome to the Business, Tourism & Informatics Symposium 2021; an event we can all remember.

Associate Professor Martin Daniel (PhD)

Coordinator | Business, Tourism & Informatics Symposium Chief Editor | Book of Abstracts Dean | Faculty of Business & Informatics Divine Word University



Collaborative and inclusive leadership at the local level: A woman's role in PNG's rural tourism

Fiona Pisong N'Drower

Collaborative and inclusive leadership at the local level in rural communities in Papua New Guinea (PNG) is still a struggle. This was observed while conducting fieldwork in eight different communities. The main purpose of the fieldwork was to assess the effectiveness of Community Based Tourism in rural communities using an Indigenous Research Method, modified to suit PNG's cultural context. It was found that females played a secondary role in facilitating tourism initiatives within their communities. This scenario mimics other development projects at the grassroots level. Few women leading tourism initiatives are a result of their society's cultural practice. This could be addressed by encouraging women through policies promoting gender equality and equity that is filtered down and emphasized not just at the global and national level but right through to the local level within societies. Effective mechanisms need to be put in place to self-regulate the implementation of inclusive partnership, leadership and ownership at all levels of service delivery surrounding development. This will ensure that there is equal participation for the common good and that there are equal economic benefits especially in communities that are considered to be at the bottom end of the economic spectrum. Such communities make up the populace of PNG. Further, international agencies can influence inclusiveness and ethical prosperity by re-adjusting their requirements for offering assistance to locally-led developments, which should be done in light of the locals' needs and include all stakeholders.

References

- Çiçek, D., Zencir, E., & Kozak, N. (2017). Women in Turkish tourism. *Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Management*, *31*, 228-234. doi:10.1016/j.jhtm.2017.03.006
- Duffy, L. N., Kline, C. S., Mowatt, R. A., & Chancellor, H. C. (2015). Women in tourism: Shifting gender ideology in the DR. *Annals of Tourism Research*, *52*, 72-86. doi:10.1016/j.annals.2015.02.017
- Ferguson, L. (2011). Promoting gender equality and empowering women? tourism and the third millennium development goal. *Current Issues in Tourism*, *14*(3), 235-249. doi:10.1080/13683500.2011.555522
- Scheyvens, R., & Scheyvens, R. (2000). Promoting women's empowerment through involvement in ecotourism: Experiences from the third world. *Journal of Sustainable Tourism*, 8(3), 232-249. doi:10.1080/09669580008667360
- Tajeddini, K., Ratten, V., & Denisa, M. (2017). Female tourism entrepreneurs in Bali, Indonesia. *Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Management*, 31, 52-58. doi:10.1016/j.jhtm.2016.10.004

Biodata

Fiona Pisong N'Drower is a lecturer in the Department of Tourism & Hospitality Management in the Faculty of Business and Informatics at DWU. Email: FNDrower@dwu.ac.pg



Exploring the challenges of small-scale women tourism entrepreneurs in the urban Madang District, Papua New Guinea

Helen Gimbo

This study explored the challenges of local women tourism entrepreneurs in the urban Madang District, Papua New Guinea. The study aimed to understand how women are impacted by their engagement in small scale tourism businesses, identify the barriers or challenges to the success of their business and determine how these challenges might be overcome by relevant governing bodies. This qualitative research applied explorative methods of data collection through semi-structured interviews and the data were analysed using the thematic analysis. Findings revealed that the effects of tourism entrepreneurship engagement on women are mostly economic, social, personal and cultural. The barriers to their success in tourism entrepreneurship were found to be financially, socially, culturally and politically oriented. Findings suggest that the government needs to address local law and order issues, assist women with project funding or support initiatives and establish suitable infrastructure to ease the facilitation of their enterprises. Hence, the results could be useful for the government and tourism policymakers to make informed decisions on the development of local tourism SMEs in Madang, particularly those owned and operated by women.

References

- Gentry, K. M. K. (2007). Belizean women and tourism work: Opportunity or impediment? *Annals of Tourism Research*, 34(2), 477–496. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2006.11.003.
- Jo Bensemann, C. & Hall, M. (2010). Copreneurship in rural tourism: Exploring women's experiences, *International Journal of Gender and Entrepreneurship*, 2(3), 228-244, https://doi.org/10.1108/17566261011079224
- Beedle, J., Kline C., Cardenas, D., Byrd, E.T, & Schneider, P. (2013). An exploration of gendered systems theory on women-owned businesses in emerging tourism destinations: Future directions, *Journal of Tourism and Cultural Change*, 11:3, 170-186, DOI: 10.1080/14766825.2013.808644
- Papua New Guinea Tourism Sector Review and Master Plan (2007-2017). (2006). *Growing Papua New Guinea Tourism as a Sustainable Industry Final Report.* Port Moresby, Papua New Guinea Government.

Biodata

Helen Gimbo is a lecturer in the Department of Tourism and Hospitality Management in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. She has a Masters in International Sustainable Tourism Management (Monash University, Australia), a Postgraduate Certificate in Higher Education Teaching & Learning (DWU, Madang) and Bachelor of Business majoring in Tourism (Southern Cross University, Australia). Email: hgimbo@dwu.ac.pg



2018 APEC Summit and national pride: An emerging finding using in-depth interviews



Vanessa Uiari Nathaline Murki

This paper discusses the importance of the in-depth interview as a method that is underlined by interpretivism in social research. In the project *Extraordinary Events in Extraordinary Places*: *Understanding the Legacy of the 2018 APEC Summit in Port Moresby*, conducted by four lecturers in the Department of Tourism and Hospitality Management, data was elicited from in-depth interviews to explore participants' accounts and interpretations of the legacies of a mega-event. Network sampling was used to select key informants who are part of tourism's wider society and whose daily lives were affected by the 2018 APEC Summit. Transcripts were read and re-read to identify keywords and phrases that exemplify the concept *legacy*. Categories were created from these words and phrases using in vivo codes. Checks for inter-coder reliability were used to ensure there was agreement in analyzing and interpreting the data. An emerging finding is the groundswell of national identity and national pride that participants commonly felt. However, political corruption has eroded the nationalistic and diplomatic role that committed public servants at the Papua New Guinea Tourism Promotion Authority working with multi-lateral partners, promoted in planning and staging important parts of the 2018 APEC Summit. The legacy of nationalist sentiments and national pride that mega-events induce are fundamental for nation building.

References

- Creswell, J. W. (2012). *Qualitative Inquiry and Research Design: Choosing Among Five Approaches*. Sage publications.
- Getz, D., & Page, S. J. (2015). Progress and prospects for event tourism research. Tourism Management, 52, 593–631. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2015.03.007
- Gursoy, D., & Kendall, K. W. (2006). Hosting mega events: Modeling locals' support. *Annals of Tourism Research*, *33*(3), 603–623.
- Hayduk, T. M. (2020). Do the rich get richer? Exploring disparate effects of hosting sport mega events on high technology exports for developed and developing nations. *The Journal of International Trade & Economic Development*, 29(8), 973–994. https://doi.org/10.1080/09638199.2020.1782973
- LeCompte, M. D., & Schensul, J. J. (2010). *Designing and conducting ethnographic research: An introduction (Vol. 1)*. Rowman Altamira.
- Ren, X. (2008). Architecture and nation building in the age of globalization: Construction of the national stadium of Beijing for the 2008 Olympics. *Journal of Urban Affairs*, 30(2), 175–190.

Biodata

Vanessa Uiari and Nathaline Murki are lecturers in the Department of Tourism and Hospitality Management in the Faculty of Business and Informatics at DWU.



Leadership-the boss and the leader: A Papua New Guinea perspective

Roy Bauelua

Many businesses and organizations are not only multi-national but also produce multiple products. They are operating globally and in a boundary-less environment. Managing multi-national corporations can be very challenging. With the constantly changing business environment, these challenges could easily develop into a crisis and become a threat to the survival of organizations if not properly handled. On the same note, effective management of small and medium-sized enterprises in Papua New Guinea is critical. While advances in technology have made it easier for organizations to compete in a global economy, it may not make it easier for them to remain competitive with so many enterprises competing. So how do some organizations cope successfully while others continue to operate haphazardly, end up in a declining position and, in worse scenarios, downsize or end up winding down? Among others, could it be the kind of boss or leadership styles and lack of leadership skills in these organizations as one of the reasons for their downfall? This paper discusses some of the pitfalls of leadership in the PNG setting in comparison with commonly accepted management and leadership principles in the global setting.

References

Bartol, K.; Tein, M; Matthews, G; Martin, D. (2005). *Management: A Pacific Rim Focus*, Australia: McGraw-Hill.

All Business Editors | In: Hiring & Firing_Mastering "the Art of Getting Things Done Through People."

Retrieved May 2021, from https://www.allbusiness.com/mastering-the-art-of-getting-things-done-through-people-12023-1.html

Jick, T. D. (1993). Managing Change – Cases and Concepts, University of Michigan, Irwin.

Prideaux, M. Leadership in Papua New Guinea: Exploring Context and Barriers. James Cook
University School of Business. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from

https://www.anzam.org/wp-content/uploads/pdf...

Biodata

Roy Bauelua is a senior lecturer within the Department of Business Studies in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. He holds a Masters of Business Administration (Leadership and Management) from the Institute of High Education, Avondale College, Sydney in Australia. His interests include researching issues related to business management in PNG. Email: rbauelua@dwu.ac.pg



Economic tripartite partnership: Smallholder empowerment in Papua New Guinea

Wilson Go

This paper focuses on advocacy for the empowerment of smallholder groups for increased productivity, especially in an agricultural country like Papua New Guinea. Smallholder empowerment is the responsibility of both the government and the industry partners, to pave the way for the economic tripartite partnership: the government, the industry partner(s) and the smallholders. The advocacy focuses on two main areas: (a) policy, institutions and governance, and (b) farms and communities. A select of four made in PNG products demonstrate home-grown success stories (or failures) in smallholder empowerment in PNG: Trukai Rice, New Britain Palm Oil, Besta, and Ox & Palm. It is important that the government's policy framework for agriculture must be consistent with the principles of agricultural economics wherein the interdependence between the agriculture sector and the industry must be observed, and that both sectors must be developed in parallel with each other. Included in this presentation are the advocacy aims and objectives, activities, and outcome areas expected in accordance with the FAO Regional Initiative (Europe & Central Asia). Smallholders, when empowered, are spectators no more but become active participants in the harvest of their natural resources.

References

- FAO. (2021). *Empowering smallholders, family-farms and youth*. FAO. Retrieved from https://www.fao.org/europe/regional-initiatives/smallholders-family-farms/en/.
- Johnson, D.G. (1986). Agricultural economics, contributions: Discussion. *American Journal of Agriculture Economics*, 68 (2), 395-396.
- Martin, W. (2019). Economic growth, convergence & agriculture. Agricultural economics. *The Journal of the International Association of Agricultural Economics*, 50 (1), 7-27.
- PricewaterhouseCoopers (PNG). (2016). *Overview and commentary of the PNG Government's SME Policy*. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from https://www.pwc.com/pg/en/publications/sme-bulletin/sme-bulletin-png-sme-policy-commentary.pdf
- Simmons, P. (2002). Overview of smallholder contract farming in developing countries. Retrieved 3

 December 2021, from

 https://www.researchgrate.net.publication/5021697_Overview_of_Smallholder_Contract_F

 arming_in_Developing_Countries.

Biodata

Mr Wilson Go, MBA CPA is a senior lecturer and the program coordinator of Diploma in Business Studies in the Finance & Management Department in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. He has 20 plus years of teaching experience in PNG and the Philippines; 6 years as the UPNG Bursar; and 6 years in various management positions in commerce & industry in PNG. His area of research interests & advocacy includes MSME & Entrepreneurship Development. Email address: wgo@dwu.ac.pg

Human Development Index: PNG progress optimization model



Raunu Gebo Sarsoruo Michaelynne Yaguro

Human Development Index (HDI) is a holistic measure of human well-being, which is essential for a nation's strategic development plan. The purpose of this paper is to identify the Papua New Guinea's government planning policies that improve the indicators of the PNG HDI and propose modifications to the indices to achieve the PNG Vision 2050 goals. Modifying the indices would yield more sensible policies that will enhance PNG to be ranked among the top 50 countries in the United Nations Development Program's Report (UNDPR). Currently, PNG HDI is ranked at 0.555 and is categorized as a medium human development country. Using an optimization model on current PNG HDI data through an objective function, a maximized ranking for Papua New Guinea is generated. The objective function, is solved through linear programming with a maximized value between 0.8 to 0.9, thus placing PNG amongst the top very high human development countries and thereby achieving its' 2050 goal.

References

- Gebo, R & Anderson, P. K. (2019). *Human Development Index : PNG progress and a mathematical explanation*. DWU Electronic Journal of Informatics, 1, 90–105.
- Dept launches development plans to meet Vision 2050 The National. (n.d.). Retrieved 14 July 2021, from https://www.thenational.com.pg/dept-launches-development-plans-to-meet-vision-2050/
- Fox, W. P. (2020). "Introduction to Optimization Models. Nonlinear Optimization", 1–34. https://doi.org/10.1201/9781003009573-1
- Human Development Index (HDI) Definition. (n.d.). Retrieved 14 July 2021, from https://www.investopedia.com/terms/h/human-development-index-hdi.asp
- Mariano, E. B., Ferraz, D., & de Oliveira Gobbo, S. C. (2021). The Human Development Index with Multiple Data Envelopment Analysis Approaches: A Comparative Evaluation Using Social Network Analysis. In Social Indicators Research, 157 (2). Springer Netherlands. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11205-021-02660-4

Biodata

Raunu Gebo Sarsoruo is a lecturer in the Department of Mathematics & Computing Science in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. She holds a Master's Degree in Mathematical Methods for Computing Science from the University of Silesia in Poland. She specializes in Pure and Applied Mathematics. Her research interest includes mathematical modelling for solving real-world problems, security for secured systems against cyber-attacks and mobile application development including Android and iOS apps. Email: rgebo@dwu.ac.pg

Michaelynne Yaguro is a final year undergraduate student studying Bachelor of Mathematics and Computing Science at the Divine Word University. Her research interests include mathematical modelling and its applications in Papua New Guinea. Email: 14701@student.dwu.ac.pg



Predicting the spread of COVID-19 in PNG using SIR model incorporating quarantine and testing

Cyril Sarsoruo Ronnie Teloma Pakau

The increase of COVID-19 cases signals a health and economic crisis in Papua New Guinea (PNG). The human race has been put to challenge to devise solutions to fight this deadly disease. Epidemiologists make use of compartmental models such as the SIR model to model the spread of disease and predict its future course. This paper presents a modified SIR model augmented to incorporate quarantine and testing to control and reduce the spread of COVID-19. The respective rates of the SIR model are formulated using the available data online from PNG COVID-19 Statistics and Our World in Data websites. These rates are incorporated into the modified SIR system of equations and the Python Trinket platform is employed to display projections of the model. The results show that increasing the rates of testing and quarantine decreases the rate infection rate in the susceptible population. These findings may predict the next wave of COVID-19 and provide useful information to the government so it can adequately allocate its limited resources to fight against COVID-19 in PNG.

References

- Anand, N. Sabarinath, A Geetha, S. Somanath, S. (2020). *Predicting the Spread of COVID-19 Using SIR Model Augmented to Incorporate Quarantine and Testing*. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s41403-020-00151-5
- Barnes, B. & Fulford, G.R. (2008). *Mathematical modelling with case studies: A Differential equations approach using Maple and MATLAB*, (2nd ed.). CRC Press, Boca Raton, FL (USA).
- Lopez, L. Roda, X. (2020). A Modified SEIR model to predict COVID-19 outbreak in Spain and Italy: Simulating control scenarios and multi-scale epidemics. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from https://www.medrx.iv.org/content/10.1101/2020.03.27.20045 005v3
- Our world in data (2021). *Papua New Guinea: Coronavirus Pandemic Country Profile*. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from https://ourworldindata.org/coronavirus/country/papua-new-guinea
- COVID-19 PNG. (2021). *Papua New Guinea Covid-19 Statistics*. Retrieved 3 December 2021, from https://covid19.info.gov.pg/

Biodata

Cyril Sarsoruo is a lecturer and Acting Head of the Department of Mathematics and Computing Science in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. He holds a Master's degree in Theoretical Mathematics from the University of Silesia in Poland and specializes in mathematical analysis. His research interests include mathematical modelling, functional equations and inequalities. Email: csarsoruo@dwu.ac.pg.

Ronnie Teloma Pakau is a final year undergraduate student studying Bachelor of Mathematics and Computing Science at the Divine Word University.



Using big data to improve health service delivery in Papua New Guinea

Maryanne Bagore

Massive amounts of data can be generated, stored and analyzed by public and private sectors in Papua New Guinea (PNG) to improve the health service delivery to the general public and the citizens. In PNG's health sector, big data can be generated from various sources including biomedical, patients' medical records, medical test results, hospital records and treatments. These massive amounts of data need to be properly managed and analyzed to produce meaningful information for planning, decision making and delivery of health services. In PNG there are challenges faced in handling big data and health care providers need to build appropriate infrastructure to provide better solutions for improving public health care. This paper presents how big data can be used in the health sector to improve health services delivery.

References

- Milenkovic, M. J., Vukmirovic, A., & Milenkovic, D. (2019). Big data analytics in the health sector: Challenges and potentials. *Management: Journal of Sustainable Business and Management Solutions* in Emerging Economies, 24(1), 23-33.. https://doi.org/10.7595/management.fon.2019.0001
- Dash, S., Shakyawar, S. K., Sharma, M., & Kaushik, S. (2019). Big data in healthcare: Management, analysis and future prospects. *Journal of Big Data*, 6(1), 1-25. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40537-019-0217-0
- Abouelmehdi, K., Beni-Hessane, A., & Khaloufi, H. (2018). Big healthcare data: Preserving security and privacy. *Journal of Big Data*, *5*(1), 1-18. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40537-017-0110-7
- Todor, R. D., & Anastasiu, C. V. (2018). A future trend in healthcare: The use of big data. *Bulletin of the Transilvania University of Brasov. Economic Sciences. Series V*, 11(1), 119-124.
- Roski, J., Bo-Linn, G. W., & Andrews, T. A. (2014). Creating value in health care through big data:

 Opportunities and policy implications. *Health Affairs*, *33*(7), 1115-1122.

 https://doi.org/10.1377/hlthaff.2014.0147
- Heitmueller, A., Henderson, S., Warburton, W., Elmagarmid, A., Pentland, A. S., & Darzi, A. (2014). Developing public policy to advance the use of big data in health care. *Health Affairs*, *33*(9), 1523-1530.
- Bates, D. W., Saria, S., Ohno-Machado, L., Shah, A., & Escobar, G. (2014). Big data in health care: Using analytics to identify and manage high-risk and high-cost patients. *Health affairs*, *33*(7), 1123-1131. https://doi.org/10.1377/hlthaff.2014.0041

Biodata

Maryanne Bagore is a lecturer and Acting Head of the Department of Information Systems in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. Her current research interests include implementation factors of ERP systems in PNG, user perceptions on e-learning platforms in PNG, how continuous innovation from digital disruptions can stimulate a creative economy in PNG, and how taxicab geometry can be used in Excel to calculate real distances. Email: mbagore@dwu.ac.pg.



Factors influencing the adoption of wearable devices in healthcare in developing countries

Rodney Gunik

The use of wearable devices in healthcare is transforming the way health services are delivered to the population around the world. Developing countries are no exception where the bulk of the population still lives in remote communities. The use of wearable devices on an existing telecommunication technology infrastructure brings about observable outcomes such as improved access to specialists, increased patient satisfaction with care, improved clinical outcomes, reduction in emergency cases, and saving healthcare costs. In this paper, various models of technology adoption are discussed, a qualitative systematic literature review (SLR) is conducted in the stream and the results are presented from 10 out of 93 papers reviewed. The limitations in SLR will be discussed as the basis for conducting further research in Papua New Guinea.

References

- Carcary, M., Maccani, G., Doherty, E., & Conway, G. (2018). Exploring the determinants of IoT adoption: Findings from a systematic literature review. *Lecture Notes in Business Information Processing*, 330. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-99951-7_8
- Granulo, E., Bećar, L., Gurbeta, L., & Badnjević, A. (2016). Telemetry system for diagnosis of asthma and chronical obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD). *Lecture Notes of the Institute for Computer Sciences, Social-Informatics and Telecommunications Engineering, LNICST, 187*, 113–118. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-51234-1_18
- Lindén, M., Bjurquist, T. J., & Björkman, M. (2016). Healthcare needs, company innovations, and research enabling solutions within embedded sensor systems for health. *Lecture Notes of the Institute for Computer Sciences, Social-Informatics and Telecommunications Engineering, LNICST*, 187, 16–21. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-51234-1_3
- Maddox, E. N., Boozer, R. W., & Forte, M. (2007). The technological impact analysis: a research-based exercises to heighten learners' technological sensitivity. *Developments in Business Simulation and Experiential Learning*, *34*, 37–39. https://journals.tdl.org
- Okoli, C. (2015). A guide to conducting a standalone systematic literature review. *Communications of the Association for Information Systems*, *37*(1). https://doi.org/10.17705/1cais.03743

Biodata

Rodney Gunik is a senior tutor in the Department of Mathematics and Computing Science in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. He holds a Bachelor of Mathematics and Computing Science, a Cisco Certified Academy Instructor, a Postgraduate Certificate in Higher Education Teaching & Learning and a Graduate Certificate in Data Networking. He specializes in Applied Mathematics, Computer Science and CCNA. He has research interests including software development, mathematics and computer science. Email: rgunik@dwu.ac.pg



Papua New Guinea tourism crisis management insights: Lessons from COVID-19

Alcinda Trawen

Tourism can show a considerable capacity to rebound after a crisis situation. However, in the short term, the impact of negative events on the sector can be significant. In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Papua New Guinea Tourism Promotion Authority undertook a study on the management of the pandemic by the tourism sector and the organization's role in managing the impacts of COVID-19. This study employed a quantitative research method and convenience sampling. The data was collected using survey questionnaires, facilitated through Survey Monkey. Statistical analysis was used to draw meaning from the data, which was done using Microsoft Excel. The study found that communications, crisis management strategy and tourism specific support are essential elements for implementation to support crisis management in the tourism industry in Papua New Guinea (PNG). Findings from this study add to the literature by offering a better understanding of tourism destination crisis management in PNG.

References

ASEAN Secretariat (2016). *Tourism crisis communication manual*, ASEAN Secretariat: Jakarta, Indonesia

PATA (2020a). Crisis Communications Planner, PATA Head Office: Bangkok, Thailand.

PNGTPA (2007). Tourism Master Plan, PNGTPA: Port Moresby, Papua New Guinea

UNWTO (2020). Communicating Crisis During and POST COVID19, Webinar accessed 28/03/20, UNWTO

WTTC (2019). Crisis Readiness, World Travel and Tourism Council: London, United Kingdom

Biodata

Alcinda Trawen worked for the UNWTO Regional Support Office for Asia and the Pacific, based in Japan. She was also formally with PNGTPA for thirteen years. Prior to this, she taught at the Divine Word University as a lecturer within the Department of Tourism and Hospitality Management. She holds a Master's Degree in Tourism majoring in Ecotourism from James Cook University, Australia and a Master's Degree in Planning with Credit from the University of Otago, New Zealand. Email: altrawen@gmail.com



Reviving tourism in the new normal through staycation: Through the eyes of an observer

Fiona Pisong N'Drower

In the wake of COVID-19, the notion of staycations has resurfaced in the tourism industry, in particular, destinations where tourism is a major player in their economy. Staycations refers to a holiday spent in one's home country rather than abroad or one spent at home. It may involve day trips to local attractions. Others have referred to it as proximity tourism and even at times slow tourism: traveling slowly and locally. Papua New Guinea (PNG) as a tourist destination could embark on staycations as the way forward in boosting its tourism industry. PNG as a destination relies almost entirely on international tourists for its tourism industry. Similar to other countries, the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the tourism industry drastically. Staycations, when embraced can redefine local tourism in PNG. Papua New Guineans travelling to other places in PNG will appreciate and respect the diverse culture that is taken for granted as there is more understanding through exposure. This will also support the local businesses, both formal and informal sectors. Staycations means travelling fewer kilometres compared to travelling overseas and staying fewer nights in accommodation providers, which in turn promotes sustainability. Staycations has the potential to revitalize tourism, promote sustainable tourism and national unity as more indigenous Papua New Guineans learn each other's way of life and culture.

References

- Cvelbar, L. K., & Ogorevc, M. (2020). Saving the tourism industry with staycation vouchers. *Emerald Open Research*, 2, 65. https://doi.org/10.35241/emeraldopenres.13924.1
- Gonçalves, A. (2020). What is staycation: Discover the latest trend in sustainable tourism. Retrieved 3

 December 2021, from https://youmatter.world/en/staycation-definition-stay-vacationssustainable/
- Jeuring, J. H. G., & Haartsen, T. (2017). The challenge of proximity: the (un) attractiveness of near-home tourism destinations. *Tourism Geographies*, 19(1), 118-141.
- Molz, J. G. (2009). Representing pace in tourism mobilities: Staycations, slow travel and the amazing race. *Journal of Tourism and Cultural Change*, *7*(4), 270-286.
- Pyke, S., Hartwell, H., Blake, A., & Hemingway, A. (2016). Exploring well-being as a tourism product resource. *Tourism Management*, *55*, 94-105.
- UNWTO: UNWTO Tourism Highlights, 2018 Edition. Madrid: UNWTO. 2018.

Biodata

Fiona is a lecturer in the Department of Tourism & Hospitality Management in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. Email: FNDrower@dwu.ac.pg



Adventure travel and its impacts on teaching and learning in the Department of Tourism & Hospitality Management

Theresia Wome Kau

Adventure travel is a type of tourism, involving exploration with perceived risk, specialized skills and physical exertion. It is also defined as any tourist activity involving physical activity, cultural exchange and engagement with nature. Planned student field trips in tourism could also take the form of adventure tourism. This paper is based on personal reflections from involvement with adventure travels in tourism from 2016 to 2021 as a tourism lecturer at the Divine Word University. The participants of the excursions were self-motivated University students and staff. The travels were voluntary, well organized, self-funded and consisted of tourism components that involved physical activity, cultural exchanges and interactions, and engagement with nature. The reflections are on how the experiences in these travels have affected concerned students in learning in relation to units offered in tourism and hospitality management. An additional question is on how these travels have had life-long impacts on students. Experiences from adventure travels have positive effects on tourism knowledge delivery through teaching. Thus, enhanced learning and teaching occur through adventure travels. The most important lessons learnt through adventure travels is real-world learning, access, socio-economic growth and academic impact. Various challenges are encountered but adventure travel has a positive impact on teaching, learning and the curriculum experienced by all adventurers involved.

References

- Adventure Travel Trade Association (ATTA)(2014). Education for the Business of Adventure Travel. https://www.adventuretravel.biz/education/adventure-edu/ cited in World Tourism Organization (UNWTO) (2014). AM Reports, Volume 9 Global Report on Adventure Tourism. UNWTO. https://www.e-unwto.org/doi/book/10.18111/9789284416622
- Broomhall, S., Pitman, T., Majocha, E., McEwan, J. (2010). *Articulating Lifelong Learning in Tourism:*Dialogue between Humanities Scholars and Travel Providers. Canberra: Australian Learning and Teaching Council.
- Goh, E. (2011, June). The value and benefits of fieldtrips in tourism and hospitality education. *Higher Learning Research Communications*, 1(1), 60-70. http://dx.doi.org/10.18870/hlrc.v1i1.18
- Janowski, I., Gardiner, S., & Kwek, A. (2021, January). Dimensions of adventure tourism. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, *37*. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2020.100776

Biodata

Theresia Wome Kau is a lecturer and Head of the Department of Tourism and Hospitality Management in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. She holds a Master's Degree from Waikato University in New Zealand, specializing in Tourism and Hospitality Management. Her research interest is in community-based tourism development and governance. Her passion is in adventure tourism, travelling and teaching. Email: tkau@dwu.ac.pg



Challenges in teaching a large class and its benefits in the Department of Business Studies

Kosley Wara

Teaching a large class is a challenge, but it also offers many opportunities to improve your teaching and make it more enjoyable and rewarding for yourself and the students. In a large class setting, you have the opportunity to improve your organizational and managerial skills as you work to creatively organize your classroom into a comfortable, welcoming learning environment and to manage the many students within it. Large classes offer the opportunity to improve your interpersonal skills as you use different ways to know each student as an individual through their work in class or their lives outside of it. Students will also equally enjoy getting to know you. Large classes also allow you to improve your teaching, presentation skills, eLearning skills and how to effectively use other virtual teaching tools. The value of a large class is that it contains a diversity of students and learning styles, and you can use many different, active, and fun ways of teaching. You will also improve your evaluation skills as you devise a variety of ways to tell whether your students have really learned what was delivered to them. Your students can also benefit from being in large classes when they share many different ideas and interesting life experiences.

References

- de Arriba, R. (2017). Participation and collaborative learning in large class sizes: Wiki, can you help me? *Innovations in Education and Teaching International*, *54*, 364-373.
- Maringe, F., Sing, N. (2014). Teaching large classes in an increasingly internationalizing higher education environment: Pedagogical, quality and equity issues. *Higher Education*, *67*, 761-782.
- Lund Dean, K., Wright, S. (2017). Embedding engaged learning in high enrollment lecture-based classes. *Higher Education: The International Journal of Higher Education Research*, 74, 651-668.
- Owston, R., Lupshenyuk, D., Wideman, H. (2011). Lecture capture in large undergraduate classes: Student perceptions and academic performance. *Internet and Higher Education, 14*, 262-268.
- Woollacott, L., Booth, S., Cameron, A. (2014). Knowing your students in large diverse classes: A phenomenographic case study. *Higher Education*, *67*, 747-760.

Biodata

Kosley Wara is a lecturer and the Head of the Department of Business Studies in the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. Email: kwara@dwu.ac.pg



Online unit delivery of flexible learning programs in the Faculty of Business and Informatics

Martin Daniel

Institutions of higher education around the world are embracing the use of online learning platforms to facilitate their teaching and learning activities, a development made possible by the rapid expansion of information and communication technologies. These institutions are using learning management systems such as Moodle and other tools to deliver their units online. The Divine Word University has been using Moodle to deliver its units through blended mode. Some units are now being delivered online. In this paper, the author presents his experiences of delivering units of flexible learning programs online using Moodle and other complementary tools in the Faculty of Business & Informatics. He also presents some main challenges encountered in the online delivery of these units. Finally, he suggests some ways to address these challenges for improvement.

References

Divine Word University. (2020). Online learning policy, Divine Word University: Madang.

- Moodle. (2021). Getting started with Moodle LMS. Retrieved 2 December 2021, from https://moodle.com/getstarted/.
- Beqiri, M. S., Chase, N. M., & Bishka, A. (2009). Online course delivery: An empirical investigation of factors affecting student satisfaction. *Journal of Education for Business*, 85(2), 95-100.
- Wang, Q., Woo, H. L., Quek, C. L., Yang, Y., & Liu, M. (2012). Using the Facebook group as a learning management system: An exploratory study. *British journal of educational technology*, 43(3), 428-438.
- Wang, Q., Woo, H. L., Quek, C. L., Yang, Y., & Liu, M. (2012). Using the Facebook group as a learning management system: An exploratory study. British Journal of Educational Technology.
 Retrieved 2 December 2021, from https://bera-journals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/epdf/10.1111/j.1467-8535.2011.01195.x.

Biodata

Martin Daniel is an Associate Professor and the Dean of the Faculty of Business & Informatics at DWU. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Information Technology from the University of Queensland in Australia, a Master's degree in Information Technology from the Queensland University of Technology in Australia and a Doctor of Philosophy from DWU. His interests include researching and modelling technological developments (e.g. e-government and e-learning) in PNG. Email: mdaniel@dwu.ac.pg and mdmartindaniel@gmail.com.

Program for the symposium

FIUGIAINI	or the symposium	
8:30-8:35am	Welcome and program outline, Master/Mistress of Ceremony	
8:35-8:40am	Opening prayer, Raunu Gebo-Sarsoruo	
8:40-8:45am	PNG National Anthem & Pledge, led by Nigel Totona	
8:45-8:55am	Opening remarks	
	Professor Fr Philip Gibbs, President of the Divine Word University	
Tourism and Hospitality (A)		
8:55-9:05am	Collaborative and inclusive leadership at the local level: A woman's role in PNG's rural tourism	
	Fiona Pisong N'Drower	
9:05-9:15am 9:15-9:25am	Exploring the challenges of small-scale women tourism entrepreneurs in the urban Madang	
	District of Papua New Guinea	
	Helen Gimbo	
	2018 APEC Summit and national pride: An emerging finding using in-depth interviews	
	Vanessa Uiari & Nathaline Murki	
9:25-9:35am	Questions and Comments	
Business and Management		
9:35-9:45am 9:45-9:55am	Leadership - boss and leader: A Papua New Guinea perspective	
	Roy Bauelua	
	Economic tripartite partnership: Smallholder empowerment in Papua New Guinea	
	Wilson Go	
9:55-10:00am	Questions and Comments	
10:00-10:10am	Keynote Speaker	
	Professor Maretta Kula-Semos, Director Quality Assurance, Divine Word University	
10:10-10:40am Break		
Mathematics and Technology		
10:40-10:50am	Human Development Index: PNG progression optimization model	
	Raunu Gebo-Sarsoruo & Michaelynne Yaguro	
10:50-11:00am 11:00-11:10am 11:10-11:20am	Predicting the spread of COVID-19 in PNG using SIR model incorporating quarantine and testing	
	Cyril Sarsoruo & Ronnie Teloma Pakau	
	Using big data to improve health service delivery in Papua New Guinea	
	Maryanne Bagore	
	Factors influencing the adoption of wearable devices in healthcare in developing countries Rodney Gunik	
11:20-11:30am	Questions and Comments	
11.20-11.30aiii	Tourism and Hospitality (B)	
Papua New Guinea tourism crisis management insights: Lessons from COVID-19		
11:30-11:40am	Alcinda Trawen	
11:40-11:50am	Reviving tourism in the new normal through staycations: Through the eyes of an observer Fiona Pisong N'Drower	
11:50-11:55am	Questions and Comments	
Teaching and Learning		
11:55am -	Adventure travel and its impacts on teaching and learning in the Department of Tourism &	
12:05pm	Hospitality Management	
'	Theresia Wome Kau	
12:05-12:15pm	Challenges in teaching a large class and its benefits in the Department of Business Studies	
•	Kosley Wara	
12:15-12:25pm	Online unit delivery of flexible learning programs in the Faculty of Business and Informatics	
	Martin Daniel	
12:25-12:35pm	Questions and Comments	
Closing remarks		
12:35-12:45pm	Launching of Volume 4 of the Electronic Journal of Informatics	
	Associate Professor Martin Daniel, Coordinator and Chief Editor of the Journal	
12:45-12:55pm	Closing remarks, Associate Professor Martin Daniel, Coordinator of the Symposium	